

# Constitution for the Governance of Renew

---

**Date: 14<sup>th</sup> March 2019**

---

This document sets out the rules of association and governance for the political party registered under the Political Parties, Referendums and Elections Act 2000 ("PPERA") with the name "Renew". References to "the Party" or to "Renew" in this document shall be taken to refer to that political party only.

## **1. Preamble**

Renew exists to provide a national political framework for collective action to advance the Aims and Policies of the Party and to facilitate and support our members in their Community Work. Renew believes that the constitution of the United Kingdom, being unwritten, is vulnerable to its institutions becoming obsolete, or to drift from democratic control to closed oligarchy. Renew believes that this includes the institutions of the State and its political parties. Renew's response to this threat is to encourage broad, democratic participation to allow for democratic reform of institutions for the benefit of the people and communities of the United Kingdom.

## **2. Aims**

Renew aims to place Candidates for election in the Local, European and General Elections who are committed to furthering the Aims and Policies of the Party. Renew exists to provide its best endeavours to secure election of the Party's Candidates at all levels of the democratic process.

## **3. Members**

### **3.1. Ordinary Membership**

3.1.1. Membership of Renew is open to natural persons who have attained the age of 16 and who are eligible to vote in any election that takes place in the United Kingdom under the provisions of PPERA. In the event of the United Kingdom leaving the European Union, any person who would have been eligible for membership prior to the leaving of the European Union shall remain eligible. A person who successfully becomes a Member upon completion of the Application Process shall continue to be so provided the following conditions are met:

Any Party membership fees applicable have been correctly paid, and / or any arrears of payment do not exceed 3 months in duration;

The Member has not been found to be in breach of the Members' Code of Conduct and is otherwise of good character and in good standing.

The Member is not or does not purport to be a member of an Incompatible Organisation.

People who join and remain members of the party on this basis shall be known as "Ordinary Members". Each Ordinary Member is also a member of a single Regional Organisation.

The Party Chair shall be obliged to keep and maintain a definitive list of Party members, which shall be conclusive as to membership of the Party.

The Application Process shall be determined by the Party Board.

#### **3.1.2. Probationary Membership**

There shall be a probationary period of Membership. Any person who has been a member for less than six continuous months may have their membership terminated by the Board summarily and without reasons given.

## **4. Equal Opportunities and Diversity**

Renew is committed to the principles of equality of opportunity and diversity, and all appointments, whether paid or unpaid, shall be treated as subject to the Equality Act 2010.

### **1.1. Equality of Opportunity and Racial Discrimination**

Renew accepts the principle that certain individuals are liable to suffer overt or covert discrimination and unequal treatment based on their membership or perceived membership of certain ethnic or religious groups. Thus, Renew accepts a broad definition of "racism" to include certain bigotries that in

some circumstances, others might consider to be religiously, rather than ethnically based, such as anti-Semitism and anti-Muslim animus (sometimes called “Islamophobia”).

Renew therefore considers individuals to have the right to freedom and protection from persecution, discrimination or harassment based on their religious affiliations or the affiliation of their family members, but Renew does not consider religious groups to be exempt from criticism on philosophical, political, intellectual or ideological positions.

Renew is committed to the elimination of racism, and seeks to create an environment which encourages active participation by all people regardless of background.

## **1.2. Equality of Opportunity and Equality of the Sexes**

Renew is committed to the equality of men and women. Renew accepts that institutions of political, social and economic life have been created by men and for the participation of men, and that therefore women seeking to participate fully in those institutions might face certain implicit or explicit barriers to entry and participation which do not affect men. Renew is committed to the removal of those barriers wherever possible, and otherwise to facilitating women’s equality.

## **1.3. Equality of Opportunity and Gender and Sexuality**

Renew recognises that people who identify as lesbian, gay, bisexual and who do not conform to strict gender binaries, or who are transgender (“LGBT people”) face discrimination that people without those identities do not. Renew’s commitment to diversity and inclusivity includes LGBT people, and Renew is committed to ensuring respect for LGBT people and their private and family lives.

## **1.4. Equality of Opportunity and Disability**

Renew is committed to the rights of disabled people, and recognises that people with disabilities face overt or covert discrimination others do not. Renew is committed to ensuring respect for disabled people and their rights and opportunities.

## **1.5. Equality of Opportunity and Class**

Renew accepts the principle that social class is a phenomenon highly determinative of the opportunities available to individuals throughout their lives. In particular, Renew accepts the obstacles that lack of social and economic high-status can place in the way of participation in political life, and the disproportionate influence in public life of the small percentage of people who attended fee-paying educational institutions before the age of 18.

## **1.6. Equality of Opportunity and Candidate Selection**

Further to the statements of values required collectively by Renew and individually by Renew members under the heading of this section “Equal Opportunities and Diversity”, Renew recognises that it has a

duty to ensure proportional representation of communities wherever possible. For this reason, long-lists, short-lists and appointments within the party, including for candidacy for office shall be monitored by the Party Board to ensure that candidates from a diverse range of backgrounds are given the full opportunity to participate.

## **1.7. Equality of Opportunity and Disciplinary Measures**

Further to the statements of values required collectively by Renew and individually by Renew members under the heading of this section "Equal Opportunities and Diversity", the expression of views incompatible with those statements, i.e. statements in effect expressing discriminatory views towards people based on their membership of class, ethnic, or religious groups, gender, sex or sexuality, physical ability or otherwise or any other protected characteristic as defined by the Equalities Act 2010 shall be considered a breach of discipline, and any person holding any Renew office, including ordinary membership, shall be subject to disciplinary procedures as set out below at 6. Sexual harassment shall not be tolerated. Any person found to have engaged in unwanted sexual harassment of any person views shall be subject to disciplinary procedures as set out below at 6.

## **Organisational Structure**

### **5.1. Regional Organisation**

Each Member of Renew shall be a member of a single Regional Organisation. There shall be 13 Regional Organisations as follows:

- (1) Greater London
- (2) Northern Ireland
- (3) Scotland
- (4) The East Midlands
- (5) The East of England
- (6) The North-East
- (7) The North-West
- (8) The South-East
- (9) The South-West
- (10) The West Midlands
- (11) Wales
- (12) Yorkshire and the Humber
- (13) Overseas

The Party Chair shall approve the creation of each Regional Organisation, and organise that there shall be kept and maintained a definitive list of Regional Organisations and Officers of Regional Organisations. The Party Chair may dissolve a Regional Organisation with the approval of the Party Board

### **5.2 Party Leader**

There shall be a Leader of the Party appointed by the Party Board for a term not exceeding five years. A person appointed to the Leadership by the Board is permitted to serve renewed consecutive terms.

The appointment of a Leader by the Party Board shall be approved by the Supervisory Board by a simple majority. The Office of Leader may not be held simultaneously with the office of Party Chair or the office of Chief Executive.

A Member shall be eligible for election to Leadership if the Member has been approved as a candidate for the Leadership by the Party Board.

The Party Board shall be deemed to have the responsibility for the correct conduct of a Leadership election. A Leadership election shall be required if there is a vacancy. A vacancy shall be deemed to have arisen if:

- (1) the five year term of office of the Leader has expired and the Board has not renewed the term.
- (2) there is no-one recognised by the Party Board currently occupying the office by reason of death, incapacity or withdrawal of Party Board recognition following a disciplinary hearing and vote of no confidence per (3);
- (3) the Party Board has withdrawn support for the Leader by passing a motion of no-confidence.
- (4) the effective date of a resignation of the Leadership submitted by the Leader to the Party Chair is reached.

In the period between a vacancy arising and the appointment of a new Leader, the Deputy Leader shall have full powers of Leadership.

The Leader of the Party shall be responsible for the implementation of agreed Party Policies and Objectives as agreed by the Party Board

- (1) The Leader shall give her or his best efforts to further the aims and objectives of the Party including the election of the Party's candidates.
- (2) The Leader shall have the right to attend any meetings of the Party Board and any Annual or Extraordinary General Meetings of the Party and / or any Regional Organisation.
- (3) The Leader shall report to the Party Board at regular meetings of the Party Board as required by the Party Chair.
- (4) The Leader shall report to an Annual General Meeting of the Party as required by the Party Chair.
- (5) The Leader shall have sole discretion in appointing an eligible member to be Spokesperson for portfolios held by Cabinet members on local and national government matters.

### **5.3 Party Officers**

The following shall be considered to be Party Officers:

- (1) The Leader (see 5.2 above);
- (2) The Deputy Leader
- (3) The Party Chair
- (4) The Deputy Chair

- (5) The Chief Executive
- (6) The Treasurer
- (7) The Secretary
- (8) Nominating Officer

Until specified by the Board as then constituted one Party Officer may fill more than one of the above roles with the consent of the Party Board

Any person recognised as an Officer of a Regional Organisation on the Party Chair's definitive list of such individuals is an Officer of the Regional Party, but NOT a Party Officer.

The Party Chair, Deputy Chair, Chief Executive, Treasurer and Secretary shall be appointed by the Party Board for a maximum term of office of 5 years. Any vacancy shall be filled as soon as possible by the Party Board.

A vacancy shall be deemed to have arisen if:

- (1) the term of office of the Party Officer has expired; or
- (2) there is no-one recognised by the Party Board currently occupying the office by reason of death, incapacity or withdrawal of Party Board recognition following a disciplinary hearing; or
- (3) a motion to dismiss the officer has successfully been passed by the Party Board.
- (4) The Officer has failed to attend 3 meetings of the Party Board in any one 12 month period, or the Officer has failed to attend two consecutive regularly scheduled meetings without prior permission from the Party Board or without subsequent approval of the absence by the party board for good reason.
- (5) the effective date of a resignation of the Office submitted by the Officer to the Party Chair is reached.

### 5.3.1 The Deputy Leader

The Deputy Leader shall have the same powers as the Party Leader, subject to the authority of the Leader. The Deputy Leader shall be appointed by the Party Board. The Deputy Leader shall perform the duties of Acting Leader on the delegated authority of the Leader, or on a vacancy in the leadership as outlined in 5.2 above.

### The Party Chair

The Party Chair shall have the responsibility for maintaining definitive lists of Members and Regional Organisations. The Party Chair shall be the Chair of the Party Board, and Chair of meetings of the Party Board. The Party Chair shall have the power to establish and to dissolve Regional Organisations with the approval of the Party Board. The Party Chair shall have the power to accept resignations by Party Officers and shall have the power to call meetings of the Party Board at will. The Party Chair shall ensure that any vacancies in Party Offices are filled as soon as possible by appointment of the Party Board. The Office of Party Chair may not be held simultaneously with the office of Leader or the office of Chief Executive.

### 5.3.2 The Deputy Chair

The Deputy Chair shall have the same powers as the Party Chair, subject to the authority of the Party Chair. In the event that the office of Party Chair is vacant, the Deputy Chair shall serve as Acting Chair, and ensure that the Party Board appoints a new Chair as quickly as possible.

### 5.3.3 The Chief Executive

The Chief Executive shall serve as the Chief Executive of the executive organs of the party, and have the responsibility for implementation of decisions of the Party Board. The Office of Chief Executive may not be held simultaneously with the office of Leader or the office of Party Chair.

### 5.3.4 The Secretary

The Secretary shall have the responsibility under PPERA to notify the Electoral Commission of:

- (1) a person to be registered as the Party's leader;
- (2) a person to be registered as the Party's nominating officer;
- (3) a person to be registered as the Party's treasurer.

The Secretary shall oversee internal Party elections, including the appointment of Candidates for Elected Office and selection of representatives of Regional Organisations and representatives of Candidates for Elected Office to serve on the Party Board (see 5.11 below). The Secretary shall have responsibility for ensuring that elections are compliant with internal Party rules and natural justice. In the event that the Secretary is not satisfied that that an appointment or internal election has satisfied these requirements, the Secretary may apply to the Party Board to have the appointment or election nullified and the procedure re-run.

### 5.3.5 The Treasurer

The Treasurer shall serve as the Chief Financial Officer of the Party and discharge the responsibilities required under PPERA. The Treasurer shall have responsibility for maintenance of Books and Records in accordance with applicable accounting standards, including the identifying and recording of donations and loans, and quarterly reporting to the Party Board. The Treasurer shall maintain accounts, books and records during election campaigns, and provide these for sign-off to the Nominating Officer.

### 5.3.6. Nominating Officer

The Nominating Officer shall serve as the Nominating Officer of the Party and discharge the responsibilities of that post required under PPERA. The Nominating Officer shall have responsibility for the intellectual property of Renew, and authorise its use, including the Party's name, descriptions and emblems on ballot papers. The Nominating Officer shall be required to sign off on accounts, books and records of campaign expenditure during election campaigns.

## 5.4 Governing Bodies

### 5.4.1 The Party Board

The Operational Governing Body of the Party shall be known as the Party Board. The Party Board shall be initially composed of:

- 1) The Leader, The Party Chair and the Chief Executive;
- 2) Two Ordinary Members.

One of the Ordinary Members shall be female, and one of the Ordinary Members shall be male, subject to paragraph 4.2 above.

The Two Ordinary Members shall be elected at each annual party conference. The procedure for eligibility, nomination, and conduct of election shall be specified by the Party Board, and appended to this constitution.

The Party Board shall have the authority at any time to expand its membership to include representatives of Regional Organisations and further ordinary Members for elected office. The Party Board shall have the authority to reduce its membership.

The Party Board must consist of a majority of members who are neither candidates nor elected officials.

Quorum - definition

The Quorum for a meeting of the Party Board shall be four. In the event that the Party Board expands its membership, this Quorum must be revised at the same time in order to ensure proportionality between the size of the Party Board and the quorum. In the event that a Party Board meeting takes place with an even number of members, the Chair shall have a casting vote to prevent deadlock.

The Party Board shall meet at least four times in each calendar year. The arrangements for the next meeting of the Party Board shall be agreed at each Party Board meeting. Power to call further extraordinary or emergency meetings of the Party Board shall rest with the Leader, the Chair and the Secretary. The Party Board shall agree standing rules governing its ordinary and extraordinary meetings, including the notice given to members and information to be circulated in advance of meetings.

The Party Board shall have final authority in all matters of Party Policy and strategy, including determining strategy for ensuring the election of Party candidates. In the event of a dispute between the Leader and the Party Board, the Party Board shall have the power to override the Leader through the passing of a specific motion.

The Party Board shall establish an Application Process for membership of the Party, including the levying of such membership fees as are determined to be appropriate from time to time. The Party Board shall be responsible for the establishment of safeguarding members for Youth Members.

The Party Board shall have full authority to convene in disciplinary proceedings over any member in accordance with principles of natural justice. Should the Member in question be a Member of the Party Board, including the Leader, then that Member shall not have the right to stand as a judge in their own

cause and is suspended from the Party Board for the purposes of the Party Board discharging its duties as a disciplinary tribunal.

The Party Board shall have oversight over the organisation, officers and meetings of Regional Organisations, including having the power to suspend, dismiss or discipline any officers of Regional Organisations. The Party Board shall have full power to annul the decisions of Regional organisations, and supervise the procedural fairness of the organisation. The Party Board shall have the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the law, including the power to create or dissolve legal entities for the purposes of asset management.

#### 5.4.2 The Supervisory Board

The Party Board shall be subject to oversight and scrutiny of a Supervisory Board as specified below. The Supervisory Board shall consist of up to 26 Ordinary Members. Candidates for elected office may serve on the Supervisory Board. The full Supervisory Board is composed of 2 elected representatives from each Regional Organisation at 5.2 above. One of the elected representatives from each regional organisation shall be female, and one of the ordinary members shall be male, subject to paragraph 4.2 above.

The Two Ordinary Members shall be elected at each annual party conference. The procedure for eligibility, nomination, and conduct of election shall be specified by the Party Board, and appended to this constitution.

The Quorum for the Supervisory Board shall be 6. In the event that a Regional Organisation is unable to send either or both of its elected representatives, the Regional Coordinator shall serve as a default representative until an election can be held.

The Supervisory Board shall elect a Chair who shall chair the meetings. Where no elected member of the Supervisory Board is a lawyer, the Chair shall have the power to appoint a lawyer to advise the Supervisory Board without voting rights.

The Supervisory Board shall have jurisdiction to review and scrutinise the actions and decisions of the Leader, Party Officers, Regional Organisation and Party Board. It shall meet at least four times a year. In advance of each Annual General Meeting, the Supervisory Board shall review the Party accounts and sign off on their accuracy.

The Supervisory Board shall have the power to hold scrutiny and oversight hearings, and shall have the power to request the presence of any Member with at least two weeks' notice.

The Supervisory Board shall have the power to rule on the procedural fairness of any action and decision, and require that the person or body responsible for the action or decision retake it. The Supervisory Board must give reasons for its quashing of any decision, including where necessary any guidance as to what procedure would be deemed acceptable for the taking of the decision. In conducting its review of decisions, the Supervisory Board shall follow the requirements of natural justice.

#### 5.4.3 The Advisory Groups

The Party Board shall have the power to create and dissolve Advisory Groups. The Party Board shall have full discretion as to appointments to the Advisory Group, and shall appoint any person they deem

has requisite and desirable expertise to provide advice to the Party on matters of policy or direction. Meetings of the Advisory Group shall be at the discretion of the Party Board. The Role of the Advisory Group shall be solely to advise the Party Board and Party conference.

## **5.5 Candidates for Elected Office**

Candidates for Elected Office shall be selected as follows:

Candidates shall be selected from the Membership providing that subject to the discretion of the Party Board a person shall have been a Member for at least six months prior to the date of the election for which the candidate is selected. Candidates shall otherwise meet statutory requirements of national law for eligibility to serve in the elected office.

### 5.5.1 Role of Regional Organisations

A Regional Organisation may nominate a Short List of candidates for any elected office in the United Kingdom (defined as an elected office, elections to which are governed by PPERA) at an ordinary meeting of the Regional Organisation. The Candidate need not be a member of the Regional Organisation, but shall subject to the discretion of the Party Board satisfy the eligibility period of six months' membership of the Party. On the nomination of a Short List, a candidate shall be selected from the Short List by a full meeting of all members of the Regional Organisation. The Regional Organisation shall have regard to S. 4 of this document when nominating the Short List, and where the Short List fails to include a minimum of 50% female prospective candidates, an account and explanation for the failure to meet diversity requirements shall be rendered to the Party Board. Where the Short List fails to include a minimum of 10% persons with a protected characteristic within the meaning of the Equalities Act 2010, an account and explanation for the failure to meet diversity requirements shall be rendered to the Party Board.

### 5.5.2 Reporting on Candidate Diversity

Per s. 4 of this Constitution, the Party aspires to ensure that its candidates for elected office are truly representative of the geographical areas they aspire to serve. The Regional Organisation shall appoint a reporting officer with the duty to report to the Party Board. The Reporting Officer shall have the duty to collect demographic information relating to ethnicity for each of the Regional Organisations. The ethnicity of candidates shall as far as possible reflect the ethnicity of the Region. Where candidates do not reflect the ethnicity of the Region, the Regional Board shall have a duty to explain this failure. The Party Board shall have the duty to ensure that 50% of candidates are female. Where there are fewer than 50% female Candidates, the Party Board shall have a duty to explain this failure. The Party shall also report on the numbers of candidates who form part of LGBT communities and candidates with disabilities and explain any failure to have proportionate numbers of candidates. Reports on diversity shall be delivered to a meeting of the Party Board not more than 12 months after the election for which the candidates were selected. The Reporting Officers of the Regional Organisation shall have the responsibility for rendering the data to the Party Board for the compilation of the diversity report.

All the Members of the Regional Organisation who have been members for at least three months prior to the election may participate in the selection of the candidate from the Short List. Selection shall take place at a full meeting of all eligible members of the Regional Organisation by secret ballot. A meeting held with the purpose of selecting a candidate for elected office from the short list is quorate with a

minimum attendance of 60% of the Regional Organisation. Upon the selection of a candidate for elected office by the Regional Organisation, the identity of the candidate shall be registered with the Party Board.

### 5.5.3. Role of the Party Board

In the absence of a Regional Organisation, or if a Regional Organisation for whatever reason fails to select their own candidate for elected office, the Party Board shall have full discretion in nominating a candidate. A candidate so nominated by the Party Board may be exempt from the six month membership requirement for eligibility. The Party Board shall have full discretion in accepting or rejecting the nomination of a Regional Organisation.

Candidates are selected for elected office for one election only. At the election, they cease to be candidates, and shall seek reselection according to the rules established by the Party whether successful or not.

The Party Board shall establish rules and code of conduct for (1) Candidates for Elected Office and (2) Occupants of Elected Office.

## **6. Disciplinary Procedures**

The Party Board shall have jurisdiction over ethics, conduct and standards. All Members, Officers, Officers of Regional Organisations and Candidates for Elected Office shall abide by the appropriate standards for the position they occupy. All Members shall have due regard to the reputation of the Party.

Any allegation that any person has:

- (1) breached any rule in this Constitution;
- (2) breached any rule in the Code of Conduct;
- (3) acted otherwise to imperil the reputation of the Party;
- (4) has acted otherwise in a manner which the Party Board is satisfied merits disciplinary action

shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the Party Board.

### 6.1.1. Investigations and Hearings

The Party Board has full discretion to conduct any investigation or initiate disciplinary procedures against any member. In the event that the Party Board determines an allegation to be substantial either prima facie or following investigation, the Party Board shall conduct a disciplinary hearing in accordance with the principles of natural justice. The Party Board shall have the power to sit as a tribunal to hear the allegation and rule as to whether the allegation should be upheld. Any person who has been a member for less than six continuous months may have their membership terminated by the Party Board summarily and without reasons given.

### 6.1.2. Malicious allegations

In determining whether to investigate or to try an allegation, due regard shall be had to the timing of the alleged incident as well as the timing of the allegation made to the Party Board. Except in complaints relating to sexual misconduct, the Party Board shall be entitled to rule that allegations are too historic to merit upholding a complaint against the Member. The Party Board shall have due regard to the importance of free speech when determining whether to investigate or try an allegation.

Disciplinary sanctions shall include where appropriate: fines, suspension and expulsion from the Party.

## **7. Procedure for adoption, change and repeal of Party Policies**

The Party Board shall adopt a manifesto of Party Policies, which it shall maintain and keep updated from time to time. An updated manifesto shall be published for any election in which candidates representing the Party are selected.

## **8. Finances**

Responsibility for the Finances of the Party in accordance with PPERA shall rest with the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have responsibility for maintenance of Books and Records in accordance with applicable accounting standards, including the identifying and recording of donations and loans, and quarterly reporting to the Party Board.

Each Regional Organisation shall have responsibility for ensuring that the Treasurer is supplied with all relevant information to discharge the responsibilities outlined under (5.10) above. Failure to make adequate quarterly financial reports shall be a disciplinary offence.

## **9. Changes to the Constitution**

This Constitution is adopted by a nascent political movement. It is designed for use by a small political party in the process of establishing itself and attempting to grow its membership. As such, its clauses have been designed with a small membership in mind. The Party Board is given wide discretionary powers in order that the organisation shall have the benefit of a small and agile decision making process. The Party Board shall have due consideration to changes to the Constitution that shall become necessary as the Party grows in size in order to increase participation and internal Party democracy. In particular, the Party Board shall have the discretion to create subsidiary Party organisations for Parliamentary Constituencies and/or local authorities with the Regional Organisations. When the Party has a membership exceeding 10,000 members, the Party Board shall arrange for a revision of the Constitution in order to ensure that it remains fit for purpose with regard to the aims and objectives of the Party. The Party Board shall have discretion to make such changes to this document as they shall deem appropriate from time to time. The Party Board shall have the power to dissolve the Party and dispose of its assets including intellectual property.

## **10. Terminology**

Any reference to statute law or other legislation in this document shall be to Acts of the UK Parliament by their commonly known or short titles unless otherwise stated.

The following defined terms are used in this Constitution:

Candidate	Candidates for Elected Office are Members selected as per 5.5 for elections within the United Kingdom governed by PPERA.
Community Service	Service given by an individual for the purposes of altruistic improvement of society at large. Such service should be unpaid or receive only minimal stipendiary or expenses remuneration. Examples of community service include voluntary service in citizens' advice bureau, law centres, community centres, schools, hospitals, food banks, homeless shelters, women's' refuges or occupations of offices to serve the community such as Special Constables, lay magistrates or school governors.
Incompatible Organisation	Any organisation, including political parties whose aims and objectives are incompatible with those of Renew. Any organisation proscribed in the United Kingdom for the reasons of the prevention of terrorism and maintenance of public order shall be automatically considered an incompatible organisation. The Party Board shall maintain a list of other such organisations as are incompatible with Renew by reason of political belief. An organisation that does not appear on this list may be considered incompatible by reason of obvious hostility to and antagonism with the values, aims and objectives of Renew in the minds of a reasonable person.
Regional Organisation	Regional Organisations shall be the Regional party bodies for the purposes of organisation and campaigning. Rules for constitution and governance shall be agreed by the Party Board.
Members' Code of Conduct	The Code of Conduct for all party Members as appended at Appendix 1